
Americans with Disabilities Act  

The City of Stonecrest does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its programs, services, activities and 
employment practices.   

If you need auxiliary aids and services for effective communication (such as a sign language interpreter, an assistive 
listening device or print material in digital format) or reasonable modification to programs, services or activities 
contact the ADA Coordinator, Megan Reid, as soon as possible, preferably 2 days before the activity or event.  

 

 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA  
 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr.  
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1  Council Member Rob Turner- District 2  

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3  Council Member George Turner- District 4  

Council Member Tammy Grimes – District 5  
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  
VIRTUAL MEETING June 22, 2020 6:00PM 

Citizen Access: URL 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jason Lary 

II. AGENDA ITEMS: 

1. Stonecrest Parks & Recreation Update 
i. Everett Park/Chestnut Lakes Park Expansion Opportunity 

 
2. Document requests for the city clerk to send to council 

3. Set a date for Mid-year budget review 

4. Contract Management 

5. Job description/job announcement for Finance Director 

6. Job description/ job announcement for Procurement Manager 

7. Decision on the Internal Auditor position 

8. Follow up discussion on the officers of the city within the charter 



Americans with Disabilities Act  

The City of Stonecrest does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its programs, services, activities and 
employment practices.   

If you need auxiliary aids and services for effective communication (such as a sign language interpreter, an assistive 
listening device or print material in digital format) or reasonable modification to programs, services or activities 
contact the ADA Coordinator, Megan Reid, as soon as possible, preferably 2 days before the activity or event.  

 

9. Discuss the process of staff dismal/removal 

10. Policy on council meeting/work session agenda packets and minutes 

11. Discuss funding source of the Stonecrest Cares program 

12. Stipend for Planning Commission Members 

13. Mayor and Council 2022 Salary 

14. Start the process to search for a city manager 

III. ADJOURNMENT 

In the event the Work Session agenda is not completed by 7:00pm, the Work Session agenda will recess for 
the Council Meeting and will then resume at the completion of the Council Meeting.  



   

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Tammy Grimes – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

June 22, 2020 
7:00 p.m. 

Citizen Access: URL 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

VI. MINUTES: 
a. Approval of the May 26, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of the June 8, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes 
c. Approval of the June 16, 2020 at 4:00pm Special Called Meeting Minutes  
d. Approval of the June 16, 2020 at 6:00pm Special Called Meeting Minutes  

 
 

VII. PRESENTATIONS:  
a. Historic Resource Survey Presentation - Presented by the Atlanta Regional 

Commission (Elizabeth Sandlin) 
 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS: 

a. N/A 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(since this meeting will be conducted virtually, the public comments received via 
email in advance of the meeting will be read into the minutes by the City Clerk) 



Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

The City of Stonecrest does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its programs, services, 
activities and employment practices.  
 
If you need auxiliary aids and services for effective communication (such as a sign language 
interpreter, an assistive listening device or print material in digital format) or reasonable 
modification to programs, services or activities contact the ADA Coordinator, Megan Reid, as soon 
as possible, preferably 2 days before the activity or event. 

 
 
 
 
 

X. WORK SESSION ITEMS 
i. N/A 

 
XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

a. N/A 
(since this meeting will be conducted virtually, only those public hearing 
comments received via email in advance of the meeting will be read by the City 
Clerk) 

 
XII. NEW BUSINESS: 

i. N/A 
 

XIII. OLD BUSINESS: 
a. Ordinance for Rezoning Application RZ-20-001 (6086 & 6100 Hillandale Drive) 
b. Sam’s Club & Sears Property Purchase 

i. Review Updated Financing Schedule 
ii. First Read of Bond Authorizing Ordinance 

iii. Special Called Meeting of Urban Redevelopment Authority to adopt Bond 
Resolution (following this meeting) 

 
XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: (if necessary) 

 
WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE 
FOLLOWING ISSUES:  1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 
 

XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 
 

XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 



Approval of the May 26, 2020 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Tammy Grimes – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
May 26, 2020 

 7:00 p.m. 
Virtual Meeting Available to the Public via YouTube Live 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 

 
II. ROLL CALL:  All members present. 

 
III. INVOCATION:  Invocation was led by Council Member Rob Turner.  

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: 

 
There was much discussion regarding Public Hearings being held virtually. 
 
Mayor Lary suggested the amendment to the agenda to remove the Public Hearing for 
RZ-20-001 and place it on the June 8, 2020 Council Agenda if the applicant agrees to 
sign the waiver from the in person public hearing. 
  
Motion 1- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to approve the agenda with the 
stated amendments and was seconded by Mayor Jason Lary. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

VI. MINUTES: 
a. May 11, 2020 Minutes Council Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes  
 
Motion 2- was made by Council Member George Turner to approve the May 11, 
2020 Minutes with the correction to item 6a to include the correction under new 



2 
 

business that the Mayor and Council will discuss the contracts at a Special Called 
Meeting and was seconded by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

VII. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. Council Member Tammy Grimes acknowledged the 2020 Retired Teachers and 
Support Staff from DeKalb County. 

1. Albert Bell - Teacher: Health and Physical Ed. - Stoneview Elementary  

2. Joette Edge – School Nurse (RN/LPN): – Stoneview Elementary  

3. Glenda Hoskins – Teacher: Spanish – Martin Luther High Jr. High School  

4. Nettie McCrary-Brown – Teacher: Interrelated: Support Services/Instruction at– Murphey-
Candler Elem.  

5. Barbara Middlebrooks – Assistant: The School Office – Miller Grove High  

6. Patricia Ramsey – Teacher: Kindergarten - E.L. Bouie, Sr. Elementary  

7. Allen Sampson - Teacher, Health and Physical Ed. –Martin Luther High Jr. High School  

8. Taneesha Thomas - Administrative Support - Arabia Mountain High School  

9. Harriett Thompson – School Nutrition Assistant – Lithonia Middle School  

10. Tracey Williams – Assistant Principal – Salem Middle School  

11. Janis McDonald – Teacher: Special Education – Lithonia High School 

 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS: 
a. None 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AND READ ALOUD BY CITY CLERK INTO THE 
MINUTES 

a. Pyper Green- I am a 30 year resident of Dekalb county, and a homeowner for 26 of 
those years. I recently discovered you all have allowed a concrete recycling plant to 
start building in my residential area. This cannot happen. This is going to RUIN our 
quality of life as well as our home values. This literally going up in our backyards. 
We expect white officials to do this,but we don’t expect BLACK elected officials to 
sell us out. We are asking that uou all stop this development. Please do not do this our 
communities. The chemicals that have been shown in a 2017 study will contaminate 



3 
 

our communities. The noise from the trucks will also affect our quality of life. NO 
ONE advised us of this development, or we would have come out in full force. In fact 
there was opposition to this in January 202, but you all still voted for it. There are 
other areas in Dekalb county for this. Send this to NORTH Dekalb county. Why is 
this being dumped on a predominantly Black RESIDENTIAL AREA?  

  

Elections are coming up. IN addition, we may also need to seek legal recourse if this 
development is allowed to destroy our community. Please stop this plant from being 
built in our backyards. 

b. Jeremy Scott  

Valaise Path  

Stonecrest, GA 30038 

 

Good evening, 

 

I would like to comment know. Ode enforcement within our city, while I have 
generally been pleased with the responsiveness of code enforcement it’s is clear that 
our code enforcement is much more reactive than proactive. Many of the code 
complaints that I have submitted over the last couple of years should have been easily 
spotted by a code officer driving through the major corridors in Stonecrest, however I 
have been disappointed to find that in many instances my code request were the first 
for a given property.  

 

As a city we are still setting our baseline, it is imperative that code enforcement take a 
proactive approach and begin citing business owners and plazas within our city under 
their own volition. Seeing enforcement officers in plazas and businesses should 
become common place. We need to set the standards for the city we want to be, and 
once that baseline has been set we can relax and take a more reactionary approach. 
Grime covered buildings and overgrown landscaping shouldn’t be common place 
here but unfortunately it is. 

X. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a. Moved to June 8, 2020 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Moved to June 8, 2020 



4 
 

b. Lot Combination for Parcels: 16-132-1-1, 16-132-2-2, 16-132-2-3, 16-133-1-2, 
16-125-1-153, 16-124-1-3, 16-132-1-19 

Motion 3- was made by Mayor Jason Lary to approve the Lot Combination after 
Chris Wheeler verifies the parcel numbers are correct and was seconded by Council 
Member George Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 
XII. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

 

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion 4- was made by Council Member George Turner to go into Executive 
Session for personnel matters and was seconded by Mayor Jason Lary. 

Motion passed 5-1 with Council Member Jimmy Clanton voting nay. 

Motion 5- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to reenter into Regular Session 
and was seconded by Council Member George Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

XIV. CITY MANAGER UPDATE  

Deputy City Manager Plez Joyner- None 

XV. CITY ATTORNEY  
 
None. 

 
XVI. MAYOR AND COUNCIL UPDATES 

Council Member Jimmy Clanton- None 
 
Council Member Rob Turner- Stay Healthy, Stay Wise, and Be Safe.  
 
Council Member Jazzmin Cobble- Echoed the sentiments from Council Member 
Rob Turner and keep everyone in your prayers and fill out Census 2020. 
 
Council Member George Turner- 2020 Census Count is currently at 49% in 
Stonecrest. Keep completing the Census! 
 
Council Member Tammy Grimes- Will be conducting a 2020 Census at the Evans 
Mill Townhomes along with the Delta Sorority.  
 



5 
 

Mayor Jason Lary- The Stonecrest Industrial Parks and new Residential Buildings 
are growing. We need more growth in the Commercial aspect. 
 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion 6- was made by Council Member George Turner to adjourn and was 
seconded by Council Member Tammy Grims. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ day 
of _______________, 2020. 

 
 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



Approval of the June 8, 2020 
City Council Meeting Minutes 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Tammy Grimes – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
June 8, 2020 

 7:00 p.m. 
Virtual Meeting Available to the Public via YouTube Live 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 

 
II. ROLL CALL:  All members present. 

 
III. INVOCATION:  Invocation was led by Council Member Rob Turner.  

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: 

Mayor Jason Lary suggested amending the agenda to add the unfinished Work 
Sessions Items after Public Comments and before the Public Hearings. The items are 
as followed: 

1.Stonecrest Public Works Department 
ii. Millage Rate Transfer from DeKalb County 

iii. Schedule for Implementation of Public Works 

3. Stonecrest Parks & Recreation Update 
i. Facilities Safety for COVID-19 Pandemic 
ii. Everett Park/Chestnut Lakes Park Expansion Opportunity 
iii. Southeast Athletic Complex Upgrade Opportunity 

  
Motion 1- was made by Council Member Mayor Jason Lary to approve the agenda 
with the suggested amendment and was seconded by Council George Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

VI. MINUTES: 



2 
 

a. May 26, 2020 Minutes Council Meeting Minutes 
Approval of the Minutes  
 
Motion 2- was made by Council Member Tammy Grimes to defer the approval of 
the minutes to the next Council Meeting and was seconded by Council Member 
Rob Turner. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

VII. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. Mayor Lary presented an award to Sean de Palma, former Parks and Recreation 
Director. 

Mayor Lary announced that Brandon Riley will be the Interim Parks and Recreation 
Director moving forward and that Sheldon Fleming would be Operations Manager for 
the Parks and Recreation Department.  

VIII. APPOINTMENTS: 
a. Emergency Covid-19 Stimulus Committee 
Members: 
Councilman Rob Turner 
Councilman Jimmy Clanton 
Plez Joyner 
Will Settle 
Clarence Boone 
Ed Nelson 
Mayor Jason Lary 
 
Motion 3- was made by Mayor Jason Lary to appoint the Emergency Covid-19 
Stimulus Committee by Resolution and was seconded by Council Member Rob 
Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
b. Parks and Recreation Director 
 
The Mayor asked the Council if they would be in favor of offering the Sam’s Club for 
a Testing Site for Covid-19 and a Food Give-Away? 
 
Motion 4-  was made by Mayor Jason Lary to approve the use of the Sam’s Building 
and Parking lot contingent of Insurance and Financial Resources and was seconded 
by Council Member Rob Turner. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 



3 
 

1.Stonecrest Public Works Department 
ii. Millage Rate Transfer from DeKalb County 

iii. Schedule for Implementation of Public Works 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

a. City Clerk Megan Reid read aloud the Public Comments.  

Jeremy Scott submitted a public Comment via email. 

Jeremy Scott, 2860 Valaise Path, Stonecrest, GA 
Good evening, As we speak Wesley Chapel rd is in the process of getting the first 
approval for a Chipotle, when we see that in our city?  

 

X. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a. Ordinance for Rezoning Application RZ-20-001 (6086 & 6100 Hillandale Drive) 

 
Motion 5-  was made by Council Member Rob Turner to open the Public Hearing 
and was seconded by Council member George Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chris Wheeler, Planning and Zoning Director, made the staff report and recommendations 
from Staff and Zoning Board. 
 
Attorney Michell Battle spoke on behalf of her Client. 
 
City Clerk Megan Reid read aloud two public hearing comments from her email. 
 
Rob Watts @ Parks at Stonecrest 
 
How would this development compare to the site that your company proposed for 
Chamblee which will include "fitness facilities, rooftop hangouts, and about 2,700 
square feet of street-level retail fronting..." 
  
https://atlanta.curbed.com/2019/3/28/18284751/affordable-workforce-housing-
chamblee-dekalb-peachtree-marta 
 Will this be considered a “mixed-use” development that provides integrated retail 
locations that provide a Work, Live and Play concept that is truly benefiting other 
cities like Chamblee, Alpharetta, Atlanta, Dunwoody, Cumming (coming soon), etc. 
  
https://chambleega.com/DocumentCenter/View/3136/Staff-Memo---PZ2019-441-
Residences-at-Sky-Harbor 
 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fatlanta.curbed.com%2f2019%2f3%2f28%2f18284751%2faffordable-workforce-housing-chamblee-dekalb-peachtree-marta&c=E,1,vLzOpvlWIIass3O5y79qgisGAIP9xpSgPz82DYFKYwwpshtxYocmwbi1vrMTvujv4lFtzTh5VTSR9GX8ZWDnwQlyHm6XeRv46mlNsxQlXmCkdkk,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fatlanta.curbed.com%2f2019%2f3%2f28%2f18284751%2faffordable-workforce-housing-chamblee-dekalb-peachtree-marta&c=E,1,vLzOpvlWIIass3O5y79qgisGAIP9xpSgPz82DYFKYwwpshtxYocmwbi1vrMTvujv4lFtzTh5VTSR9GX8ZWDnwQlyHm6XeRv46mlNsxQlXmCkdkk,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fchambleega.com%2fDocumentCenter%2fView%2f3136%2fStaff-Memo---PZ2019-441-Residences-at-Sky-Harbor&c=E,1,rzuiGWUXO_hQ1znQ_qxMmylqi8I2YQUovs7EfqKA9Y6SXIhcngbyIOx0_5UKRJSKLpejwYGZkZ-LBg4sDCH3v3OYxDhQOt97GAYeNGDp4VxGUjuVjIQd&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fchambleega.com%2fDocumentCenter%2fView%2f3136%2fStaff-Memo---PZ2019-441-Residences-at-Sky-Harbor&c=E,1,rzuiGWUXO_hQ1znQ_qxMmylqi8I2YQUovs7EfqKA9Y6SXIhcngbyIOx0_5UKRJSKLpejwYGZkZ-LBg4sDCH3v3OYxDhQOt97GAYeNGDp4VxGUjuVjIQd&typo=1


4 
 

Maxine D. Williams, Somerset Condominium Community 
Greetings to Mayor Lary, council members, Rob Turner, my councilman, & citizens 
of our city "Stonecrest" 
I am Maxine D. Williams and a 31 year resident of the Somerset Condominium 
Community.  
Let me simply share the growth and changes I have witnessed in the county: 
2001  -  The Mall at Stonecrest 
2005 -  DeKalb Medical at Hillandale which is now Emory @ Hillandale  
2006 -  Lou Walker Center  (current member of this Awesome Facility) 
Others include - Lithonia Industrial I-20 Interchange, the Brightstone Senior 
Community and most importantly, the creation of the City of Stonecrest in 2017! 
Surely, the Best is yet to come! 
I am in support of Blue Ridge Atlantic Development in the creation of workforce 
housing to continue with economic development that is so vital for our families & 
our communities.  
With Sincere Thanks & Best Regards, 
 
M.Williams 
 

Motion 6-  was made by Council Member Jimmy Clanton to close the public hearing 
and was seconded by Mayor Jason Lary. 

 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance for Rezoning Application RZ-20-001 (6086 & 6100 Hillandale 
Drive) 

Motion 7- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to defer the decision until the 
next meeting on June 22, 2020 and was seconded by Council Member Jazzmin 
Cobble. 

There was much discussion. 

Motion passed 4-2 with Mayor Jason Lary and Council Member Jimmy Clanton 
opposing. 

 
XII. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 
 

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

None. 

Motion 8- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to have a Special Work Session 
on June 11, 2020 at 4pm and was seconded by Council Member George Turner. 



5 
 

Motion passed 5-1 with Council Member Jimmy Clanton opposing. 

XIV. CITY MANAGER UPDATE  

None. 

XV. CITY ATTORNEY  
 
None. 

 
XVI. MAYOR AND COUNCIL UPDATES 

Council Member Jimmy Clanton- None 
 
Council Member Rob Turner- None.  
 
Council Member Jazzmin Cobble- None. 
 
Council Member George Turner- None. 
 
Council Member Tammy Grimes- None.  
 
Mayor Jason Lary- None. 
 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion 6- was made by Council Member Jazzmin Cobble to adjourn and was 
seconded by Mayor Tammy Grimes. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ day 
of _______________, 2020. 

 
 
 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



 
Approval of the June 16, 2020 
at 4:00pm Special Called 
Meeting Minutes 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Tammy Grimes – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
June 16, 2020 

 4:00 p.m. 
Virtual Meeting Available to the Public via YouTube Live and in person 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 

 
II. ROLL CALL:  All members present. 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
a. Property Tax Increase 

 

Motion 1-  was made by Mayor Jason Lary to open the Public Hearing and was 
seconded by Council Member George Turner. 

 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Deputy City Manager Plez Joyner read aloud the state requirements pertaining to the 
Property Tax Increase. 
There were no comments submitted via email. The following residents came in person 
and made their comments.  

• Dee Tyner of Rock Springs Road in Stonecrest 
• Joyce Walker of Stonecrest 

Motion 2-  was made by Mayor Jason Lary to close the public hearing and was seconded 
by Council Member George Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 
  
 

 



2 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion 6- was made by Council Member Mayor Jason Lary to adjourn and was 
seconded by Mayor Rob Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ day 
of _______________, 2020. 

 
 
 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



 
Approval of the June 16, 2020 
at 6:00pm Special Called 
Meeting Minutes 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Tammy Grimes – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
June 16, 2020 

 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Meeting Available to the Public via YouTube Live and in person 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 

 
II. ROLL CALL:  All members present. 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
a. Property Tax Increase 

Motion 1-  was made by Mayor Jason Lary to open the Public Hearing and was 
seconded by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 

 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Deputy City Manager Plez Joyner read aloud the state requirements pertaining to the 
Property Tax Increase. 
There were no comments in person and City Clerk Megan Reid read the emailed 
comments aloud. 

Dave Marcus- Rockland Road, Stonecrest 

This hearing is not just about moving millage from DeKalb County to Stonecrest. It is 
indirectly about the city government making a large expansion in the city’s operations. 

 

These are very uncertain financial times.  Is this is the time for Stonecrest to spend effort 
adding a large new department, especially if there is no detailed financial  model that 
shows the city can pay for delivering Public Works for the new  tax revenue that we 
would get? 

 



2 
 

As of April 30, we had taken in $1.9 million less in revenue in 2020 then by the same date 
in 2019, not including SPLOST.  1.9 million dollars less than last year. That is  17pct - 
almost one-fifth - of the city’s budget for the whole year, that hasn’t yet appeared 

 

We don’t have a finance manager to help steer the ship. We don’t have a finance 
director to help in planning our course. We don’t have a purchasing manager to make 
sure that our purchasing is tightly managed. We haven’t had a city manager for almost 6 
months and haven’t started a recruitment campaign for one. (And do we continue to pay 
Jacobs the same amount as if those positions were filled? I believe we do.) 

 

At least as of two weeks ago, no one in the city had started grappling with what to do 
about the shortfall. The council was told that that the city was waiting for the regular 
midyear budget review, which for some reason has not been moved up, as if this was 
financially a normal year.  

 

With so many financial and management positions unfilled, and staring down the barrel 
of a large budget shortfall, the city needs to figure out how to better do the things that 
we’re doing today.  The city needs to figure out how to do the things in the 
comprehensive plan that we have skipped doing, such as conducting a feasibility study 
for a police force and creating an economic develoment plan.  That was supposed to be 
done in 2019.   

 

Is this the time to think about bringing on a large new department? My opinion is that 
the city should put it off for a year, deal with the budget shortfall, and get the basics 
right first.  Then expand.  

Motion 2-  was made by Mayor Jason Lary to close the public hearing and was seconded 
by Council Member Rob Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Mayor and Council made comments. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion 3- was made by Council Member Mayor Jason Lary to adjourn and was 
seconded by Mayor Rob Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ day 
of _______________, 2020. 

 
 
 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



Historic Resource Survey 
Presentation - Presented by the 
Atlanta Regional Commission 
(Elizabeth Sandlin) 



CITY OF STONECREST HISTORIC RESOURCE 
AND 

COMMUNITY STRATEGY PROJECT

ARC Community Development Assistance Program



PURPOSE, PROCESS, & TIMELINE

Purpose

• Historic Resource Significance and Integrity 

• Historic Resource Protection Methods

Process

• Project Management Team Meetings

• Stakeholder Interviews

• Historic Resource Survey

Timeline

• June 2019 – March 2020



IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

• Neighborhood Associations

• Homeowner’s Handbook

• Conservation Overlay Districts

• National Register Historic Districts

• Local Historic Districts



SUBDIVISIONS*

Amherst Woods (13)

Arabian Woods (16)

Black Hawk Forest (11)

Bramblewood (10)

Chaparral (14)

Cleveland Woods (4)

Eagle Rock Heights (7)

Evans Mill (15)

Kings Forest (5)

Miller Grove Park (18)

Miller Road (3)

Miners Creek (8)

Old Salem Woods (9)

Patillo (17)

Runnymeade Forest (2)

Springtree (6)

Stratford Farms (1)

Winslow Crossing (12)

CROSSROADS

Belmont/Latimers

Collinsville

Flat Rock

Klondike

Panola

Pine Mountain

Snapfinger

*The number in parentheses corresponds to the 

numbered areas on the map.



STRATFORD FARMS



HOUSING TYPES

Linear Ranch

Linear-with-Clusters Ranch

Split Level

HOUSING STYLES

Colonial Revival

Rustic (Western)

Spanish Colonial Revival

ROOF TYPES

Gable

Hip

Pyramidal

MATERIALS

Brick

Wood - Vertical Board



STRATFORD FARMS [A]

HOUSE TYPE
Linear-with-Clusters Ranch

HOUSE STYLE
Dutch Colonial Revival

ROOF TYPE(S)
Gable - Lateral (Side) 
Gambrel

MATERIAL(S)
Brick 
Wood - Shingle



HOUSE TYPE
Split Level

HOUSE STYLE
Spanish Colonial Revival

ROOF TYPE(S)
Gable - Lateral (Side)

Pyramidal

MATERIAL(S)
Brick 

Wood - Vertical Board

STRATFORD FARMS [B]



HOUSE TYPE
Linear Ranch 

HOUSE STYLE
Rustic (Western)

ROOF TYPE(S)
Gable - Lateral (Side)

MATERIAL(S)
Brick

STRATFORD FARMS [C]



Ordinance for Rezoning 
Application RZ-20-001 (6086 
& 6100 Hillandale Drive) 







































































































































First Read of Bond Authorizing 
Ordinance 



 

 
~#4839-0443-4611 v.5~ 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT OF SALE WITH  
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF STONECREST 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes for which it was created, the Urban 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest (the “Issuer”) proposes to issue $5,390,000 in 
original aggregate principal amount of its Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Series 
2020A and its Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Federally Taxable Series 2020B 
(each a “Bond” and collectively the “Bonds”), in order to finance the costs of acquiring, 
renovating, and installing urban redevelopment projects described in urban redevelopment plans 
entitled “The City of Stonecrest City Hall Urban Redevelopment Plan” and “The City of 
Stonecrest Government Complex Urban Redevelopment Plan” (collectively the “Projects”) and 
to finance related costs; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest (the “Purchaser”) has taken all actions required by 
Chapter 61 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, entitled the “Urban 
Redevelopment Law,” as amended (the “Urban Redevelopment Law”), to qualify the Projects as 
“urban redevelopment projects” thereunder, including, without limitation, designating the 
premises on which the Projects will be located as included in “urban redevelopment areas” and 
approving urban redevelopment plans for the Projects following public hearings required by the 
Urban Redevelopment Law; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1.03(b)(28) of the Charter of the Purchaser authorizes the 
Purchaser to provide for the acquisition, construction, building, operation, or maintenance of 
public buildings and educational facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Section 36-34-2(5) of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated authorizes 
the Purchaser to contract with any state agency or political subdivision to perform any service or 
execute any project for such agency or subdivision in which the Purchaser has an interest; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Redevelopment Law authorizes the Purchaser to appropriate 
such funds and make such expenditures as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of the 
Urban Redevelopment Law and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia of 1983 authorizes the Purchaser (1) to contract for any period not exceeding fifty years 
with any public agency, public corporation, or public authority for joint services, for the 
provision of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment, if such contract 
deals with activities, services, or facilities that the contracting parties are authorized by law to 
undertake or provide, and (2) in connection with any such contract to convey any existing 
facilities or equipment to any public agency, public corporation, or public authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser proposes to purchase the Projects from the Issuer pursuant to 
an Agreement of Sale, to be dated as of the first day of the month of its execution and delivery 
(the “Contract”), under the terms of which the Purchaser (1) will agree to make installment 
payments of purchase price to the Issuer in amounts sufficient to enable the Issuer to pay the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due and (2) will agree to levy an 
annual ad valorem tax on all taxable property located within the corporate limits of the 



 -2- 
~#4839-0443-4611 v.5~ 

Purchaser, at such rates within the 3.35 mill limit prescribed by the Purchaser’s Charter or such 
greater millage limit hereafter prescribed by applicable law, as may be necessary to produce in 
each year revenues that are sufficient to fulfill the Purchaser’s obligations under the Contract; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will sell the Bonds to Truist Bank (the “Bond Buyer”) pursuant 
to a Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date of its execution and delivery, between the 
Issuer and the Bond Buyer; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of an Assignment and Security Agreement, to be 
dated as of the first day of the month of its execution and delivery, between the Issuer and the 
Bond Buyer, the Issuer will assign and pledge, and grant a first priority security interest in, its 
right, title, and interest in the Contract to the Bond Buyer as security for payment of the Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, after careful study and investigation, the Purchaser desires to enter into the 
Contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Stonecrest as follows: 

1. The form, terms, and conditions and the execution, delivery, and performance of the 
Contract, which has been filed with the Purchaser, are hereby approved and authorized.  The 
Contract shall be in substantially the form submitted to the City Council of the Purchaser with 
such changes, corrections, deletions, insertions, variations, additions, or omissions as may be 
approved by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tempore of the Purchaser, whose approval thereof shall be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract. 

2. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tempore of the Purchaser is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute on behalf of the Purchaser the Contract, and the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk of 
the Purchaser is hereby authorized and directed to affix thereto and attest the seal of the 
Purchaser, upon proper execution and delivery by the Issuer, provided, that in no event shall any 
such attestation or affixation of the seal of the Purchaser be required as a prerequisite to the 
effectiveness thereof, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tempore and City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk 
of the Purchaser are authorized and directed to deliver the Contract on behalf of the Purchaser to 
the Issuer and to execute and deliver all such other instruments (including, without limitation, 
deeds and bills of sale conveying to the Issuer title to any of the Projects owned by the 
Purchaser), contracts, documents, affidavits, or certificates and to do and perform all such things 
and acts as each shall deem necessary or appropriate in furtherance of the issuance of the Bonds 
and the carrying out of the transactions authorized by this Ordinance or contemplated by the 
instruments and documents referred to in this Ordinance. 

3. This Ordinance and the Contract, as approved by this Ordinance, which is hereby 
incorporated in this Ordinance by this reference thereto, shall be placed on file at the office of the 
Purchaser and made available for public inspection by any interested party immediately 
following the passage and approval of this Ordinance. 



 -3- 
~#4839-0443-4611 v.5~ 

PASSED, ADOPTED, SIGNED, APPROVED, and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of July 
2020. 

 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
        
City Clerk 

CITY OF STONECREST 
 
 
By:       
 Mayor 
 

  
 
 



 

 
~#4839-0443-4611 v.5~ 

CITY CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 

I, MEGAN REID, the duly appointed, qualified, and acting City Clerk of the City of 
Stonecrest (the “Purchaser”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing pages of typewritten 
matter constitute a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted on July 8, 2020 by the City 
Council of the Purchaser in a meeting duly called and assembled in accordance with applicable 
laws and with the procedures of the Purchaser, by a vote of _____Yea and _____ Nay, which 
meeting was open to the public and at which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and 
that the original of the foregoing ordinance appears of public record in the Minute Book of the 
Purchaser, which is in my custody and control. 

GIVEN under my hand and the seal of the Purchaser, this 8th day of July 2020. 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
 
        
City Clerk, City of Stonecrest 
 

 



Bond Resolution 



 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

BOND RESOLUTION 

A BOND RESOLUTION OF THE URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF STONECREST AUTHORIZING, INTER ALIA, THE ISSUANCE 
OF ITS REVENUE BOND (CITY OF STONECREST PROJECTS), SERIES 2020A 
AND ITS REVENUE BOND (CITY OF STONECREST PROJECTS), 
FEDERALLY TAXABLE SERIES 2020B IN AN ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $5,390,000 

Adopted June 22, 2020 

Exhibit “A”  -  Form of Bond Purchase Agreement 

Exhibit “B”  -  Form of Agreement of Sale 

Exhibit “C”  -  Form of Assignment and Security Agreement 



 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

BOND RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest (the “Purchaser”), in order to exercise the powers 
conferred upon the Purchaser by Chapter 61 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, 
entitled the “Urban Redevelopment Law,” as amended (the “Urban Redevelopment Law”), adopted 
a resolution on December 9, 2019, finding that one or more pockets of blight exist in the City of 
Stonecrest and that the rehabilitation, conservation, or redevelopment, or a combination thereof, of 
such area or areas is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety, morals, or welfare of the 
residents of the City of Stonecrest; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser, by resolution adopted on January 27, 2020, designated the areas 
covered by the hereinafter defined Urban Redevelopment Plans as “urban redevelopment areas,” or 
“pockets of blight,” which the City Council of the Purchaser designated as appropriate for urban 
redevelopment projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Purchaser held public hearings on March 2, 2020 on 
proposed urban redevelopment plans entitled “The City of Stonecrest City Hall Urban 
Redevelopment Plan” and “The City of Stonecrest Government Complex Urban Redevelopment 
Plan” (collectively the “Urban Redevelopment Plans”), copies of which are on file with the 
Purchaser; and 

WHEREAS, public notice of such public hearings was published in (1) The Champion 
Newspaper, a newspaper having a general circulation in the area of operation of the City of 
Stonecrest, on February 27, 2020 and (2) the On Common Ground News, a newspaper having a 
general circulation in the area of operation of the City of Stonecrest, on February 21, 2020, and proof 
of such publication is on file with the Purchaser; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser, by resolution adopted on March 2, 2020, approved the Urban 
Redevelopment Plans and the urban redevelopment projects set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest (the “Issuer”) is a 
public body corporate and politic duly created and validly existing under and pursuant to the Urban 
Redevelopment Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser, by resolution adopted on December 9, 2019, activated the Issuer 
and elected to have the Issuer exercise the Purchaser’s “urban redevelopment project powers” under 
the Urban Redevelopment Law, and the Issuer’s commissioners have been appointed as provided in 
the Urban Redevelopment Law and are currently acting in that capacity; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Redevelopment Law authorizes the Issuer to issue bonds to finance 
the undertaking of any “urban redevelopment project” under the Urban Redevelopment Law, which 
bonds shall be made payable, as to both principal and interest, solely from the income, proceeds, 
revenues, and funds of the Issuer derived from or held in connection with its undertaking and 
carrying out of urban redevelopment projects under the Urban Redevelopment Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Redevelopment Law authorizes the Issuer to undertake and carry out 
within the corporate limits of the Purchaser “urban redevelopment projects,” which are defined to 



-2- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

include undertakings or activities of the Issuer in an urban redevelopment area under the Urban 
Redevelopment Law for the elimination and for the prevention of the development or spread of 
pockets of blight and may involve pocket of blight clearance and redevelopment in an urban 
redevelopment area, rehabilitation or conservation in an urban redevelopment area, the 
implementation of public improvements, or any combination or part thereof, in accordance with an 
urban redevelopment plan adopted pursuant to the Urban Redevelopment Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Redevelopment Law authorizes the Issuer to make and execute 
contracts and other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of its powers under the 
Urban Redevelopment Law; to install, construct, and reconstruct streets, utilities, parks, playgrounds, 
and other public improvements; to acquire, by purchase, grant, or otherwise, any real property 
(defined to include all lands, including improvements and fixtures thereon and property of any nature 
appurtenant thereto or used in connection therewith); to hold, improve, clear, or prepare for 
redevelopment any such property; to dispose of any real property; and to borrow money for the 
purposes of the Urban Redevelopment Law and to give such security as may be required and to enter 
into and carry out contracts in connection therewith; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to issue, sell, and deliver its revenue bonds to be known as 
(1) “Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest 
Projects), Series 2020A,” and (2) “Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest Revenue 
Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Federally Taxable Series 2020B,” in the original aggregate 
principal amount of $5,390,000, for the purpose of obtaining funds to finance the costs of acquiring, 
renovating, and installing the urban redevelopment projects described in the Urban Redevelopment 
Plans (collectively the “Projects”) and to finance related costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to sell the Projects to the Purchaser pursuant to an 
Agreement of Sale, to be dated as of the first day of the month of its execution and delivery (the 
“Contract”), under the terms of which the Purchaser (1) will agree to make installment payments of 
purchase price to the Issuer in amounts sufficient to enable the Issuer to pay the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2020A Bond and the Series 2020B Bond (each a “Bond” 
and collectively the “Bonds”) when due and (2) will agree to levy an annual ad valorem tax on all 
taxable property located within the corporate limits of the Purchaser, at such rates within the 3.35 
mill limit prescribed by the Purchaser’s Charter or such greater millage limit hereafter prescribed by 
applicable law, as may be necessary to produce in each year revenues that are sufficient to fulfill the 
Purchaser’s obligations under the Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to sell the Bonds at private sale as permitted by the Urban 
Redevelopment Law, by selling the Bonds to Truist Bank (the “Bond Buyer”), pursuant to a Bond 
Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date of its execution and delivery (the “Bond Purchase 
Agreement”), between the Issuer and the Bond Buyer; and 

WHEREAS, to secure its obligation to pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Bonds, the Issuer proposes to assign and pledge to the Bond Buyer, and proposes to grant a first 
priority security interest in, all of its right, title, and interest in the Contract (except for the 
Unassigned Rights, as defined in the Contract) and all revenues, payments, receipts, and moneys to 
be received and held thereunder, pursuant to an Assignment and Security Agreement, to be dated as 



-3- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

of the first day of the month of its execution and delivery (the “Assignment”), between the Issuer 
and the Bond Buyer; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer hereby finds and determines that the Projects are “urban 
redevelopment projects” within the meaning of the Urban Redevelopment Law and that the 
financing of the Projects will further the purposes and policies of the Urban Redevelopment Law; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer has determined that accomplishing 
the foregoing is in the best interests of the Issuer, and the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer has 
found and does hereby declare that such undertaking is for a lawful, valid, and necessary public 
purpose, which will prevent and eliminate pockets of blight, all to the public benefit and good; and 

WHEREAS, copies of the forms of the following documents relating to the transactions 
described above have been submitted to the Issuer, are now on file with the Issuer, and are attached 
as exhibits: 

Exhibit “A”  - Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date of its execution and delivery, 
between the Issuer and the Bond Buyer; 

Exhibit “B”  - Agreement of Sale, to be dated as of the first day of the month of its execution and 
delivery, between the Issuer and the Purchaser; and 

Exhibit “C”  -  Assignment and Security Agreement, to be dated as of the first day of the month of 
its execution and delivery, between the Issuer and the Bond Buyer; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF STONECREST AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. In order to further the public purposes of the Urban Redevelopment Law, the Issuer is 
hereby authorized to issue the Bonds to finance the costs of acquiring, renovating, and installing the 
Projects and to finance related costs, and all such assistance previously provided is hereby ratified 
and approved.  It is hereby found, ascertained, determined, and declared that the Projects constitute 
“urban redevelopment projects,” within the meaning of that term as defined in the Urban 
Redevelopment Law, and that the financing of the acquisition, renovation, and installation of the 
Projects and the related costs thereto is for a public purpose and is necessary to prevent and eliminate 
pockets of blight, all to the public benefit and good. 

2. For the purpose of financing the costs of the acquisition, renovation, and installation of 
the Projects and of financing related costs, the issuance of $5,390,000 in original aggregate principal 
amount of revenue bonds of the Issuer to be known as “Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
Stonecrest Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Series 2020A” and “Urban Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Stonecrest Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Federally Taxable 
Series 2020B” is hereby approved and authorized pursuant to the provisions of the Urban 
Redevelopment Law. 



-4- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

3. The Series 2020A Bond shall be dated the date of its issuance and delivery, shall be 
issued as a single, fully registered bond without coupons in the original principal amount of 
$3,175,000, and shall be numbered RA-1. 

The Series 2020A Bond shall bear interest from the dates advances are made under the Bond 
Purchase Agreement on the outstanding principal amount thereof at the rate of 2.92% per annum, 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Interest on the Series 2020A Bond shall be payable on August 1, 2020 and semi-annually 
thereafter on February 1 and August 1 of each year.  Principal of the Series 2020A Bond shall be 
payable on February 1, in the years and in the amounts as follows, unless earlier called for 
redemption: 

Year Amount Year Amount 

2030 $  85,000 2036 $315,000 
2031 270,000 2037 320,000 
2032 280,000 2038 330,000 
2033 285,000 2039 340,000 
2034 295,000 2040 350,000 
2035 305,000   

Upon the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability (as defined in the Bond Purchase 
Agreement), the interest rate per annum borne by the Series 2020A Bond shall be increased to the 
rate per annum of ____% (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months) as of, from, and after the Date of Taxability (as defined in the Bond Purchase Agreement).  
An amount equal to the difference between the interest paid on the Series 2020A Bond at the rate per 
annum of 2.92% during the Inclusion Period (as defined in the Bond Purchase Agreement) and the 
interest that would have accrued on the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period had the 
interest rate on the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period been equal to the rate per annum 
of ____%, which amount shall be owed retroactively on the Series 2020A Bond as a result of the 
occurrence of a Determination of Taxability, shall be payable by the Issuer thirty (30) days after the 
date of the Determination of Taxability, and shall be apportioned among each registered owner of 
the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period according to the ratio of the number of days it 
was a registered owner of the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period to the total number of 
days within the Inclusion Period.  Retroactive interest payable on the Series 2020A Bond as a result 
of the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability shall be paid by check or draft mailed to each 
registered owner of the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period at its address as it appears on 
the registration books of the Issuer.  Upon an increase in the interest rate on the Series 2020A Bond 
caused by the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability, such fact shall be clearly marked on the 
face of the Series 2020A Bond, together with the fact that a Determination of Taxability has 
occurred. 

Upon the occurrence of a Determination of Non-Bank Qualified Status (as defined in the 
Bond Purchase Agreement), the interest rate per annum borne by the Series 2020A Bond shall be 
increased to the rate per annum of ____% (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months) as of, from, and after the Date of Non-Bank Qualified Status (as defined in 



-5- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

the Bond Purchase Agreement).  An amount equal to the difference between the interest paid on the 
Series 2020A Bond at the rate per annum of 2.92% during the Inclusion Period (as defined in the 
Bond Purchase Agreement) and the interest that would have accrued on the Series 2020A Bond 
during the Inclusion Period had the interest rate on the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion 
Period been equal to the rate per annum of ____%, which amount shall be owed retroactively on the 
Series 2020A Bond as a result of the occurrence of a Determination of Non-Bank Qualified Status, 
shall be payable by the Issuer thirty (30) days after the date of the Determination of Non-Bank 
Qualified Status, and shall be apportioned among each registered owner of the Series 2020A Bond 
during the Inclusion Period according to the ratio of the number of days it was a registered owner of 
the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period to the total number of days within the Inclusion 
Period.  Retroactive interest payable on the Series 2020A Bond as a result of the occurrence of a 
Determination of Non-Bank Qualified Status shall be paid by check or draft mailed to each 
registered owner of the Series 2020A Bond during the Inclusion Period at its address as it appears on 
the registration books of the Issuer.  Upon an increase in the interest rate on the Series 2020A Bond 
caused by the occurrence of a Determination of Non-Bank Qualified Status, such fact shall be clearly 
marked on the face of the Series 2020A Bond, together with the fact that a Determination of Non-
Bank Qualified Status has occurred. 

4. The Series 2020B Bond shall be dated the date of its issuance and delivery, shall be 
issued as a single, fully registered bond without coupons in the original principal amount of 
$2,215,000, and shall be numbered RB-1. 

The Series 2020B Bond shall bear interest from the dates advances are made under the Bond 
Purchase Agreement on the outstanding principal amount thereof at the rate of 3.04% per annum, 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Interest on the Series 2020B Bond shall be payable on August 1, 2020 and semi-annually 
thereafter on February 1 and August 1 of each year.  Principal of the Series 2020B Bond shall be 
payable on February 1, in the years and in the amounts as follows, unless earlier called for 
redemption: 

Year Amount Year Amount 

2021 $200,000 2026 $235,000 
2022 205,000 2027 240,000 
2023 210,000 2028 245,000 
2024 220,000 2029 255,000 
2025 225,000 2030 180,000 

5. Each Bond shall bear interest on any overdue installment of principal and, to the extent 
permitted by applicable law, on any overdue installment of interest, at the aforesaid applicable rates.  
A late charge shall be immediately payable under each Bond in an amount equal to five percent (5%) 
of any installment payment thereunder that is not paid within fifteen (15) days after such payment is 
due. 

6. Each Bond shall be substantially in the form set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement 
hereinafter authorized and shall be subject to redemption, shall be payable in such medium of 



-6- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

payment at such place or places, shall be of such tenor, and shall have such other terms and 
provisions as are provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement.  The form of each Bond and the 
provisions for execution, delivery, payment, substitution, transfer, registration, and redemption shall 
be as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement hereinafter authorized. 

7. The Bonds shall be secured as provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the 
Assignment. 

8. The Bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness or general obligation of the State of 
Georgia, the City of Stonecrest, or any other political subdivision of the State of Georgia, within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever, nor a pledge of the faith and credit 
or taxing power of any of the foregoing, nor shall any of the foregoing be subject to any pecuniary 
liability thereon.  The Issuer has no taxing power.  The Bonds shall not be payable from nor a charge 
upon any funds other than the revenues pledged to the payment thereof and shall be limited or 
special obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the funds provided therefor in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the Assignment, including the proceeds of the ad valorem tax that the 
Purchaser is obligated to levy pursuant to the Contract.  No owner of the Bonds shall ever have the 
right to compel the exercise of the taxing power of the State of Georgia, the City of Stonecrest, or 
any other political subdivision of the State of Georgia, except to levy the ad valorem tax required by 
the Contract, to pay the principal of the Bonds or the interest or any premium thereon, or to enforce 
payment thereof against any property of the foregoing, other than the proceeds of the ad valorem tax 
required by the Contract, nor shall the Bonds constitute a charge, lien, or encumbrance, legal or 
equitable, upon any property of the foregoing other than the revenues pledged to the payment thereof 
and the proceeds of the ad valorem tax required by the Contract.  Neither the members of the Board 
of Commissioners of the Issuer nor any person executing the Bonds shall be liable personally on the 
Bonds by reason of the issuance thereof. 

9. The obligations of the Issuer with respect to the Security (as defined in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement) shall be as provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Assignment. 

10. The forms, terms, and conditions and the execution, delivery, and performance of the 
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Contract, and the Assignment, attached hereto as Exhibits A, B, and 
C, respectively, are hereby approved and authorized.  The Bond Purchase Agreement, the Contract, 
and the Assignment (collectively the “Bond Documents”) shall be in substantially the forms 
submitted to the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer with such changes, corrections, deletions, 
insertions, variations, additions, or omissions as may be approved by the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer, whose approval thereof shall be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution of each such instrument. 

11. The execution and delivery of the Bonds to the Bond Buyer for the purchase price and 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement are hereby approved and 
authorized.  The Issuer hereby determines that the sale of the Bonds at private sale upon a negotiated 
basis in the manner, at the price, and at the time determined in and pursuant to the Bond Purchase 
Agreement is most advantageous to the Issuer. 

12. The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the Issuer the Bond Documents, and the Secretary or 



-7- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

Assistant Secretary of the Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to affix thereto and attest the seal 
of the Issuer, upon proper execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, provided, that in no 
event shall any such attestation or affixation of the seal of the Issuer be required as a prerequisite to 
the effectiveness thereof, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary 
are authorized and directed to deliver the Bond Documents on behalf of the Issuer to the other parties 
thereto and to execute and deliver all such other contracts, instruments, documents, affidavits, or 
certificates and to do and perform all such things and acts as each shall deem necessary or 
appropriate in furtherance of the issuance of the Bonds and the carrying out of the transactions 
authorized by this Bond Resolution or contemplated by the instruments and documents referred to in 
this Bond Resolution.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Issuer by the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer by his or her manual signature, and the 
official seal of the Issuer shall be impressed thereon and attested by the manual signature of the 
Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Issuer. 

13. The attorneys for the Issuer, Fincher Denmark LLC, are hereby authorized and 
instructed to commence validation proceedings in accordance with the requirements of Article 3 of 
Chapter 82 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, as amended, and to take all 
actions necessary to obtain an order of the Superior Court of DeKalb County validating and 
confirming the Bonds and the security therefor.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Issuer and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Issuer are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute any pleadings in connection therewith. 

14. The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer is 
authorized and directed on behalf of the Issuer (i) to execute and deliver a certificate as to the 
reasonable expectations of the Issuer regarding the amount and use of the proceeds of the Series 
2020A Bond, such certificate to be based upon representations of the Purchaser; (ii) to execute and 
file with the Internal Revenue Service Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, as required by 
Section 149(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and (iii) to execute 
and make all other certifications and filings required under Section 103 of the Code and the 
applicable Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

15. The Issuer hereby designates the Series 2020A Bond as a “qualified tax-exempt 
obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code and covenants that not more than 
$10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of obligations the interest on which is excludable from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes (excluding, however, private activity bonds, as defined 
in Section 141 of the Code, other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds, as defined in Section 145 of the 
Code), including the Series 2020A Bond, have been or shall be issued by the Issuer, including all 
subordinate entities of the Issuer and all entities that issue obligations on behalf of the Issuer, during 
the calendar year 2020. 

16. This Bond Resolution and the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Contract, and the 
Assignment, as approved by this Bond Resolution, all of which are hereby incorporated in this Bond 
Resolution by this reference thereto, shall be placed on file at the office of the Issuer and made 
available for public inspection by any interested party immediately following the passage and 
approval of this Bond Resolution. 



-8- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

17. No representation, statement, covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement herein 
contained, or contained in the Bonds, in the Bond Documents, or in any certificate or other 
instrument to be executed in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, shall be deemed to be a 
representation, statement, covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement of any commissioner, 
officer, employee, or agent of the Issuer in his or her individual capacity, and none of the foregoing 
persons nor any of the officers of the Issuer executing the Bonds, the Bond Documents, or any 
certificate or other instrument to be executed  in connection with the issuance of the Bonds shall be 
liable personally thereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the 
execution or delivery thereof. 

18. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein or in the Bonds or the Bond Documents, 
nothing in this Bond Resolution or in the Bonds or the Bond Documents, express or implied, is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm, corporation, or other organization, 
other than the Issuer, the Purchaser, the Bond Buyer, and the registered owner from time to time of 
either Bond, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under and by reason of this Bond 
Resolution or any provision hereof, or of the Bonds or the Bond Documents, all provisions hereof 
and thereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer, the 
Purchaser, the Bond Buyer, and the registered owner from time to time of the Bonds. 

19. All acts, conditions, and things relating to the passage of this Bond Resolution; to the 
issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds; and to the execution and delivery of the Bond Documents, 
required by the Constitution or other laws of the State of Georgia to happen, exist, and be performed 
precedent to the passage hereof, have happened, exist, and have been performed as so required, with 
the exception of the validation proceedings referred to in paragraph 13 above. 

20. The commissioners of the Issuer and its officers, attorneys, engineers, or other agents or 
employees are hereby authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Bond Resolution, 
the Bonds, and the Bond Documents and to do all acts and things that are desirable and consistent 
with the requirements hereof or of the Bonds and the Bond Documents for the full, punctual, and 
complete performance of all the terms, covenants, and agreements contained herein or in the Bonds 
and the Bond Documents. 

21. The Issuer covenants and agrees that this Bond Resolution shall constitute a contract 
between the Issuer and the registered owner from time to time of the Bonds and that all covenants 
and agreements set forth herein and in the Bonds and the Bond Documents to be performed by the 
Issuer shall be for the benefit and security of the registered owner from time to time of the Bonds. 

22. All motions, orders, ordinances, bylaws, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such conflict.  This repealer shall not be construed 
as reviving any motion, order, ordinance, bylaw, resolution, or part thereof. 

23. The Issuer declares its intent to use proceeds of tax-exempt bonds to reimburse the 
Purchaser for moneys used to pay expenditures related to the Projects.  This Bond Resolution is and 
constitutes the Issuer’s “official intent” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2) 
to reimburse original expenditures related to the Projects with proceeds of such tax-exempt bonds. 



-9- 
 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

24. This Bond Resolution shall become effective immediately, and if any section, paragraph, 
clause, or provision hereof shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability thereof shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

PASSED, ADOPTED, SIGNED, APPROVED, and EFFECTIVE this 22nd day of June 
2020. 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 

URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF STONECREST 

 
 
By:       

Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
        
Secretary 
 
 

 

 



 
~#4812-8738-5523 v.5~ 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

I, GEORGE TURNER, JR., the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Secretary of the 
Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest (the “Issuer”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
that the foregoing pages of typewritten matter pertaining to the revenue bonds designated “Urban 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest Revenue Bond (City of Stonecrest Projects), Series 
2020A” and “Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stonecrest Revenue Bond (City of 
Stonecrest Projects), Federally Taxable Series 2020B” constitute a true and correct copy of the Bond 
Resolution adopted on June 22, 2020 by the commissioners of the Issuer in a meeting duly called 
and assembled, after due and reasonable notice was given in accordance with the procedures of the 
Issuer and with applicable provisions of law, which was open to the public and at which a quorum 
was present and acting throughout, and that the original of such Bond Resolution appears of public 
record in the Minute Book of the Issuer, which is in my custody and control. 

I further certify that such Bond Resolution has not been rescinded, repealed, or modified. 

GIVEN under my hand and the seal of the Issuer, this 22nd day of June 2020. 

 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
 
 
 
   
Secretary, Urban Redevelopment Agency of the 

City of Stonecrest 
 

 


	2020-06-22 Work Session Agenda .pdf
	CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
	VIRTUAL MEETING June 22, 2020 6:00PM
	Citizen Access: URL


	2020-06-22 Council Agenda.pdf
	Approval of the May 26.pdf
	City Council Minutes 05262020.pdf
	Approval of the june 8.pdf
	City Council Minutes 06082020.pdf
	Approval of the june 16 4pm.pdf
	City Council Minutes 06162020 4pm.pdf
	Approval of the june 16 6pm.pdf
	City Council Minutes 06162020 6pm.pdf
	historic survey.pdf
	ARC CDAP Project - 06-22-2020
	RZ-20-001.pdf
	Council Agenda Item Packet (RZ-20-001) 5-20-20
	first read bond.pdf
	Authorizing Ordinance - 2020 - City of Stonecrest, GA (2020 Urban Redevelopment Project) - 4839-0443-4611 5.pdf
	ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT OF SALE WITH  URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF STONECREST
	CITY CLERK’S CERTIFICATE

	bond resolution.pdf
	Bond Resolution  - 2020 - City of Stonecrest, GA (2020 Urban Redevelopment Project) - 4812-8738-5523 5.pdf
	BOND RESOLUTION
	BOND RESOLUTION
	1. In order to further the public purposes of the Urban Redevelopment Law, the Issuer is hereby authorized to issue the Bonds to finance the costs of acquiring, renovating, and installing the Projects and to finance related costs, and all such assista...
	2. For the purpose of financing the costs of the acquisition, renovation, and installation of the Projects and of financing related costs, the issuance of $5,390,000 in original aggregate principal amount of revenue bonds of the Issuer to be known as ...
	3. The Series 2020A Bond shall be dated the date of its issuance and delivery, shall be issued as a single, fully registered bond without coupons in the original principal amount of $3,175,000, and shall be numbered RA-1.
	4. The Series 2020B Bond shall be dated the date of its issuance and delivery, shall be issued as a single, fully registered bond without coupons in the original principal amount of $2,215,000, and shall be numbered RB-1.
	5. Each Bond shall bear interest on any overdue installment of principal and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, on any overdue installment of interest, at the aforesaid applicable rates.  A late charge shall be immediately payable under each ...
	6. Each Bond shall be substantially in the form set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement hereinafter authorized and shall be subject to redemption, shall be payable in such medium of payment at such place or places, shall be of such tenor, and shall h...
	7. The Bonds shall be secured as provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Assignment.
	8. The Bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness or general obligation of the State of Georgia, the City of Stonecrest, or any other political subdivision of the State of Georgia, within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision what...
	9. The obligations of the Issuer with respect to the Security (as defined in the Bond Purchase Agreement) shall be as provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Assignment.
	10. The forms, terms, and conditions and the execution, delivery, and performance of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Contract, and the Assignment, attached hereto as Exhibits A, B, and C, respectively, are hereby approved and authorized.  The Bond Pu...
	11. The execution and delivery of the Bonds to the Bond Buyer for the purchase price and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement are hereby approved and authorized.  The Issuer hereby determines that the sale of the Bond...
	12. The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the Issuer the Bond Documents, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Issuer is hereby authorized and dire...
	13. The attorneys for the Issuer, Fincher Denmark LLC, are hereby authorized and instructed to commence validation proceedings in accordance with the requirements of Article 3 of Chapter 82 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, as ame...
	14. The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer is authorized and directed on behalf of the Issuer (i) to execute and deliver a certificate as to the reasonable expectations of the Issuer regarding the amount and use of t...
	15. The Issuer hereby designates the Series 2020A Bond as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code and covenants that not more than $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of obligations the interest on which...
	16. This Bond Resolution and the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Contract, and the Assignment, as approved by this Bond Resolution, all of which are hereby incorporated in this Bond Resolution by this reference thereto, shall be placed on file at the off...
	17. No representation, statement, covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement herein contained, or contained in the Bonds, in the Bond Documents, or in any certificate or other instrument to be executed in connection with the issuance of the Bonds...
	18. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein or in the Bonds or the Bond Documents, nothing in this Bond Resolution or in the Bonds or the Bond Documents, express or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm, corp...
	19. All acts, conditions, and things relating to the passage of this Bond Resolution; to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds; and to the execution and delivery of the Bond Documents, required by the Constitution or other laws of the State of...
	20. The commissioners of the Issuer and its officers, attorneys, engineers, or other agents or employees are hereby authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Bond Resolution, the Bonds, and the Bond Documents and to do all acts and...
	21. The Issuer covenants and agrees that this Bond Resolution shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the registered owner from time to time of the Bonds and that all covenants and agreements set forth herein and in the Bonds and the Bond D...
	22. All motions, orders, ordinances, bylaws, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such conflict.  This repealer shall not be construed as reviving any motion, order, ordinance, bylaw, resolution...
	23. The Issuer declares its intent to use proceeds of tax-exempt bonds to reimburse the Purchaser for moneys used to pay expenditures related to the Projects.  This Bond Resolution is and constitutes the Issuer’s “official intent” (within the meaning ...
	24. This Bond Resolution shall become effective immediately, and if any section, paragraph, clause, or provision hereof shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability thereof shall not affect any of the remai...
	SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE


